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TOWN OF GLASTONBURY 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

RPGL-2017-17 

CASH MANAGEMENT & BANKING SERVICES 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

January 12, 2017 

The attention of respondents submitting proposals for the above-referenced project is called to the 
following Addendum to the specifications. The items set forth herein, whether of omission, addition, 
substitution or other change, are all to be included in and form a part of the proposed Contract Documents 
for the work. Respondents shall acknowledge this Addendum on the Proposal Response Page 
(Attachment A). 

REVISED DUE DATE & TIME:  JANUARY 26, 2017 AT 11:00 AM 

Attached to this addendum is a document of questions/answers distributed to attendees at the pre-proposal 
meeting held on 01/10/17 along with samples of Town bills.  

The questions below were received during the pre-proposal meeting and answered via this addendum: 

Question 1. Can you provide dollar amounts of paper paychecks issued by the Town and Board of Education?  Annual 

amounts will be sufficient. 

Answer Annual totals of paper paychecks issued by the Town are approximately $1,350,000, and by the Board of Education 

$3,350,000. 

Question 2. Is it acceptable to submit sample banking contracts, including third-party contracts, electronically (thumb drive, 

CD, etc.)? 

Answer Samples of all applicable contracts and any other documents (such as wire transfer authorizations and signature 

cards) that the Town will be required to sign for the bank and any third-party contractors must be submitted with the 

proposal.  These documents may be submitted using a portable memory device such as flash drive, thumb drive, or 

memory stick. 

Question 3. Can you clarify the current use of couriers for lockbox transactions and what changes the Town prefers? 

Answer Currently, the lockbox is located in Stamford, CT and the lockbox processing center is a third-party contractor in 

New York.  The lockbox contractor provides courier services from the Stamford post office to the processing center 

daily.  Exceptions that cannot be resolved online are returned to the Town daily by overnight mail (Federal 

Express).  Any mail received at the lockbox post office box during periods when the lockbox is not in operation are 

also to be returned unopened to the Town daily by overnight mail. 

To maximize the benefit of the lockbox, the Town prefers a local lockbox post office box (preferably with a 

Glastonbury address) and we plan to send some or all collections that are received at Town Hall in the mail or the 

on-site dropbox to the lockbox to be processed.  (The Town’s response to question 80 in the attached document 

indicates that payments received in the dropbox or mail will be opened and all payments with valid checks and 

matching coupons will be sent to the lockbox for processing.  The Town is considering sending all payments 

received in the mail or dropbox to the lockbox for processing.) 

During the periods the lockbox is open, the Town prefers the bank provide courier service to pick up mail from the 

lockbox post office box and from Town Hall and deliver it to the lockbox processing center.  The Town also would 

like the courier to deliver exceptions from the lockbox processing center back to Town Hall. 

If the lockbox post office box is located in Glastonbury, Town staff could pick up the mail during the periods the 

lockbox is not in operation.  If the lockbox post office box is not located in Glastonbury, the bank will be expected 

to check the box daily and return any mail unopened to the Town by overnight mail. 
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This document includes the questions received in advance of the preproposal meeting and the Town’s 
anticipated answers for today’s discussion.  These questions and any other questions received by the end of 
the day January 12 will be addressed in an addendum to the Request for Proposal which will be posted on 
the Town’s website.  

General 

Question 1. Would you accept ratings from Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s instead of IDC, Sheshunoff or 
Lace rating services?    
Answer Yes. 

Question 2.  Does the Tax Collector also use MUNIS financial software?  If not, which software do they 
use? 
Answer  The Tax Collector uses Quality Data Service (QDS) software. 

Question 3.  Who does the Town currently use to print their Tax Bills? 
Answer  QDS prints the tax bills. 

Question 4.  Is the State of Connecticut’s 10% collateralization requirement for municipal deposits 
acceptable to the Town?  If not, what level of collateralization does the Town require? 
Answer  The Town adheres to the State of Connecticut’s collateralization requirements. 

Question 5.  Since the Town is currently a client, is it required to provide a list of references? 
Answer  Yes, references are required for all respondents. 

Question 6.  If we are a finalist, would the Town accept an interactive phone/screen share presentation? 
 Answer  An interactive phone/screen share presentation is acceptable as long as the designated client 
representative is present in Glastonbury at the time of the presentation. 

Question 7.  Page 8, section J—Investment Program:  What is the dollar amount the Town would be 
investing? 
Answer  See Attachment D, Average Daily Balances for Investments 

Question 8.  Using a subaccount structure for the Parks and Recreation, Sanitation and Town Clerk 
accounts used for credit card proceeds would save the Town money.  This structure would allow all the 
credit card funds to be tracked with individual account numbers for the 3 accounts while having all the 
funds deposited directly into the General Town Disbursements account.  The Town would see the deposits 
in the General Town Disbursement account each day with a tracking number that identifies the credit card 
account it’s tied to.  This will reduce costs, allow all funds to be pooled for investment decisions while 
maintaining tracking.  Would you like us to propose using this new structure? 

 Answer  The Town is very interested in streamlining services and becoming more efficient; however, we 
are concerned about the ease of reconciling the General Town Disbursement account.  Please provide 
pricing for the current structure in the proposal and also for the suggested subaccount structure in the 
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section labeled “List any package services”.  Please provide more detail about whether the subaccounts 
can be reconciled independently of the General Town Disbursements account. 

Question 9.  What are the total cash flow numbers/balances of each account? (broken out 
individually/aggregate)? 
Answer  See Attachment D, Average Daily Balances for Investments for average balances in the sweep 
and education grants accounts.  Cash balances in the other accounts are relatively insignificant.   

Question 10.  Is the Town looking for an earnings credit on excess balances or earn interest on excess 
balances separate from the overnight sweep? 
Answer  Currently the Town earns interest on the overnight investment of the sweep account.  In addition, 
monthly fees are reduced by the earnings credit, which is calculated using the average positive collected 
balance multiplied by the earnings credit rate. 

Question 11.  What is the Town using the “Portal” for that online banking does not provide? 
Answer  The Town’s current provider states that their portal “provides a convenient single point of access 
to a broad offering of online banking services, including cash management, credit, investments, foreign 
exchange, trade finance, capital markets, trust, and insurance.” 

Question 12.  Please clarify what the intent is with compensating balances versus using interest to offset 
fees.  I’m referring to page three the section that mentions the town’s current account structure and page 
nine letter B that discusses Payment Basis.  It is mentioned that the Education Grant account will stand 
alone but the “Interest” will offset fees for the Town.  Could you please explain that? 
Answer  The Town does not use compensating balances.  The Parks and Recreation, Sanitation, and 
Police Federal Forfeiture accounts are stand-alone accounts that incur fees and earn interest to offset those 
fees.  The Education Grants and Town Clerk accounts are also stand-alone accounts, but any fees and 
interest earned are posted to either the General Town Disbursements account or the sweep account. 

Question 13.  Would the Town consider an extension to the due date for the responses? 
Answer  To be determined after preproposal meeting. 

Question 14.  Please confirm there are 10 existing accounts in the analysis relationship. 
Answer  Yes, the RFP covers 10 accounts. 

Question 15.  Would the Town be willing to provide a recent Analysis Statement so that we may provide an 
accurate estimate of services requested? 
Answer  The Town provided a complete list of services currently being provided and the annual volume in 
Attachment C.   

Question 16.  Section II – Scope of Services #8.  Secure Portal—Please clarify what the Town is looking 
for?  Secure email process? 
Answer  Please describe how the bank would share large amounts of information that is not available 
through the standard reports provided with online banking.  Examples could include secure email or a 
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secure online site for uploading and downloading files.   

Question 17.  What bank is currently used for disbursements (General Fund/AP/Payroll)? 
Answer  The Town currently uses Wells Fargo for these services. 

Deposit Services 

Question 18.  If armored courier is currently utilized, which courier do you use (Dunbar, Brinks, Loomis, 
etc.)?  What time are deposits ready for armored courier pick-up? 
Answer  The Town uses Dunbar Armored couriers.  Deposits are usually ready for pick-up by 8:30 in the 
morning. 

Question 19.  Would the Town consider utilizing a cash vault/commercial teller to verify the deposits being 
delivered via courier? 
Answer  The Town will consider all suggestions for streamlining the deposit process.  Please discuss the 
procedures and advantages as well as additional costs in your proposal. 

Question 20.  Please explain why courier services are needed when a lockbox is being utilized. 
Answer  The lockbox is used only for four months for tax and sewer payments.  The courier contracted by 
the Town picks up deposits at Town Hall and delivers them to the branch. 

Question 21.  How many remote deposit scanners does the Town require? 
Answer  The Town uses one remote deposit scanner. 

Question 22.  During Tax months, what is the average daily cash deposit amount that is sent to the 
branch? 
Answer  The Town does not specifically track this data.  For fiscal year 2016, total cash deposits sent to 
the branch during tax and sewer collection months were: 

July: $345,019 
November:   $64,458 
December: $115,754 
January: $150,217 

Question 23.  How are deposits handled?  Are they centralized and sent by courier to the bank’s cash 
vault?  Or, are they decentralized and brought to the branch?  Or some combination of both? 
Answer  All deposits are centralized through the office of the Collector of Revenue (tax office).  The 
courier picks up deposits two times per week during January and July and once per week the remainder of 
the year and delivers them to the bank branch. 

Question 24.  How many branch deposits are made each day (number of bags and number of deposits per 
bag)? 
Answer  For internal control purposes, deposits are made intact and collections from teller drawers are not 
combined.  In addition, checks that are redeposited or that cannot be read by the scanner are individually 
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deposited (one per bag).  During collection periods, deposits are picked up twice per week and we estimate 
20 – 40 bags per month.  In noncollection periods, deposits are picked up weekly and we estimate 40 – 70 
bags per month. 

Question 25.  If branch deposits are made, what time of day are deposits typically brought to the branch? 
Answer  Dunbar varies pickup times, but generally picks up the deposits in the morning. 

Question 26.  What volume of checks vs. currency vs. coin is typically deposited? 
Answer  Substantially all checks are scanned using remote deposit capture.  We estimate roughly 1% of 
deposits are check (redeposits, scan rejects), 80% currency, and the remainder is coin. 

Check Services 
Question 27.  How many paid check images are pulled annually using the image CDs?  You are correct 
that CDs are becoming more obsolete and we have other solutions to help. 
Answer  The image CDs are rarely accessed, but the Town needs the assurance that the information will 
be available if needed in the future. 

Question 28.  Can the Town provide the average number of paper paychecks issued in a month and the 
frequency of issue (Weekly/Bi-Weekly, etc) for both the Town and Board of Education? 
Answer  Paychecks are issued biweekly for both the Town and Board of Education.  The Town issues an 
average of 70 paper paychecks per payroll and the Board of Education issues an average of 185 per 
payroll. 

Question 29.  How many check issue files are sent to the bank – per month, per account. 
Answer  Generally, one file per week for the Disbursement and Education Grants accounts and one file 
biweekly for payroll.  There will be occasional supplemental or special-purpose check files in addition to 
these. 

Question 30.  Does the Town require a monthly electronic output file of paid checks for upload to A/P 
software system?  For how many accounts? 
Answer  The Town does not currently receive electronic output files of paid checks, but we are requesting 
to receive such files for at least the General Town Disbursements, General Town Payroll, Education 
Disbursements, and Education Payroll accounts. 

Question 31.  Does the Town currently receive an end of month Full Reconcilement report?  For how 
many accounts? 
Answer  The Town does not currently receive full reconcilement reports; however, we are looking to 
simplify the reconciliation process and are interested in implementing new tools if feasible.  Please provide 
information on this product. 

Insurance Requirements 

Question 32.  Do we need to submit a Certificate of Insurance with the bid, or only if we win the bid? 
Answer Respondents must submit a Certificate of Insurance only if selected for award.  
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Question 33.  Because the Bank is providing the services are all of the insurance provisions applicable to 
the RFP.  Are the Insurance requirements for the bank to provide coverage to the town (workman’s Comp, 
etc.) 
Answer  The insurance requirements are the Town’s general requirements.  Insurance requirements with 
the awarded respondent are subject to final negotiations.  Any exceptions to these requirements shall be 
listed on a separate page within the respondent’s proposal. 

Positive Pay 

Question 34.  How many accounts will be setup for positive pay? 
Answer  Five accounts will be set up for positive pay—General Town Disbursements, General Town 
Payroll, Education Disbursements, Education Payroll, and Education Grants.  

Question 35.  How many accounts will be setup for initiating ACH?  Please list whether each account will 
issue ACH both through submitted files, and ACH through the online portal. 
Answer  The Board of Education submits direct deposit and ACH vendor files from the Education 
Disbursement, Education Payroll, and Education Grants accounts.  The Town submits all ACH files from 
the General Town Disbursements account.  ACH payments requested through the online portal are 
generally initiated from the General Town Disbursements account. 

Question 36.  How many accounts have Payee Positive Pay? 
Answer  Five accounts have payee positive pay.  

Question 37.  How many accounts have ACH Positive Pay fraud protection? 
Answer  Currently, one account has ACH Positive Pay fraud protection.   

ACH Services 

Question 38.  From how many accounts are ACH credit files originated? i.e. 2 Disbursement and 2 BOE? 
Answer  ACH files are originated from the General Town Disbursements, Education Disbursements, 
Education Payroll, and Education Grants accounts. 

Question 39.  How many files are sent per month, per account?  i.e. once per week per account? 
Answer  In general, direct deposit files are sent biweekly.  ACH files are sent from the Education 
Disbursements and Education Grants accounts once per week.  ACH files are sent from the General Town 
Disbursements account less frequently, but we anticipate that files could be sent once per week in the near 
future. 

Question 40.  What is the average dollar amount of each of the Town and BOE payroll direct deposit files? 
Answer  For the Town $460,000; for the Board of Education $2.7 million. 
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Question 41.  What is the average dollar amount of each of the Town and BOE ACH vendor payment 
files? 
Answer  For the Town $25,000; for the Board of Education $130,000 

Question 42.  Does the Town utilize ACH debit origination to pull funds from another banking institution? 
If so, how often, average dollar amount per file? 
Answer  No. 

Question 43.  How is the Town currently uploading ACH files to the bank?  Upload files via online 
banking OR uploading via direct transmission where file totals are called in via phone, then a file is 
uploaded via Secure bank site? 
Answer  Both the Town and Board of Education upload ACH files via online banking. 

Question 44.  Does the Town software create a NACHA file? 
Answer  Both the Town and Board of Education software systems create NACHA files. 

Question 45.  Does the Town utilize same day ACH Origination? 
Answer  The Town does not currently use same day ACH origination.  Please discuss how this differs 
from wire transfer and any cost savings that could result from using same day ACH instead of wire 
transfers. 

Petty Cash 

Question 46.  How many times per week do you require Change Orders (coin and/or currency?) 
Answer  Generally, once per week. 

Question 47.  What volume of cash denominations do you order (twenties, fives, quarters, dimes, etc.)? 
Answer  A fairly typical request would be $100 twenties, $100 tens, $80 fives, $10 singles, $10 quarters. 

Lockbox Services 

Question 48.  Are you able to upload lockbox and remote deposit capture data into MUNIS?   
Answer  All tax collections are uploaded into Munis from the QDS system.  Other collections are still 
posted to Munis manually. 

Question 49.  Would it be possible to receive sample tax bills for real estate, personal property, motor 
vehicle and water/sewer? 
Answer  Sample bills are attached.   

Question 50.  Would the Town accept a P.O. Box in Hartford? 
Answer  The Town prefers a post office box in Glastonbury, but will consider a box in a neighboring 
town.  The Town desires to obtain courier service to and from Town Hall as well as to and from the post 
office during the periods the lockbox is open. 
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Question 51.  Are you using a Retail Lockbox:  i.e., are there scannable coupons included with the 
payments? 
Answer  Scannable coupons are included in the tax and sewer bills. 

Question 52.  What percentage of tax payments and sewer charges are paid by check?  Has the percentage 
been decreasing over the last three years? 
Answer   The percentage of tax and sewer charges paid by check average about 44% per year (large 
payments from escrow agents are received by wire transfer or ACH).  The percentage of total revenue paid 
by check has decreased slightly from 49.4% in 2015 to 46.2% in 2017 to date. 

Question 53.  What months have lockbox activity, in addition to November, December, January, and July? 
Answer  The lockbox is only in operation for those four months.  Any mail received in other months is to 
be delivered unopened to the Town. 

Question 54.  Please elaborate on the terms/services currently provided below: 
Lockbox Rough Sort <5 
Lockbox Scanned Non Scan 
Lockbox Daily Deposit Cut 

Answer  Definitions are as follows:  
Lockbox Rough Sort <5—per item charge for sorting items processed into 5 or less sorts. 
Lockbox Scanned Non Scan—fee to image check and document item regardless of delivering image; 
each front is counted as one image and each back is counted as one image. 
Lockbox Daily Deposit Cut—number of lockbox deposits. 

Question 55.  How many boxes are required? 
Answer  One lockbox is required. 

Question 56.  Is it a requirement that the P O Box be located in the Town, as long as it is in CT? 
Answer  The Town prefers a post office box in Glastonbury, but will consider a box in a neighboring 
town.  The bank still needs to provide courier service to and from Town Hall as well as to and from the 
post office. 

Question 57.  Is the Town’s current P O Box owned by the Town or the bank? 
Answer  The current post office box for the lockbox is owned by the bank.  The Town pays rental fees for 
the four months the box is in operation for our collections.   

Question 58.  For lockbox, do all boxes have scannable coupons that contain the information needed in 
the transmission file for posting?  Please provide a sample tax bill for all types of payments received via 
Lockbox.   
Answer  Samples of the tax and sewer bills are attached. 

7 

Addendum No. 1 Page 8 of 17



TOWN OF GLASTONBURY 
PREPROPOSAL MEETING 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

RPGL-2017-17 
CASH MANAGEMENT & BANKING SERVICES 

Question 59.  Are coupons printed in house or through outside vendor?  How often are they mailed out? 
Answer  Coupons are printed by Quality Data Services.  Tax coupons for both the July and January 
collections are mailed in June.  Coupons for the sewer use bills are mailed in October.  (Sewer use is billed 
annually).  Motor vehicle supplemental bills are mailed in December. 

Question 60.  Is there any information that needs to be manually captured off the coupon (entered by 
hand) that is not in the scan line?  If yes, what type of information and how many characters per coupon 
need to be manually entered. 
Answer  No. 

Question 61.  What information do you need in the transmission file (columns of information) and is all 
this information in the scan line? 
Answer  All information is in the scan line. 

Question 62.  What documents received via lockbox should be imaged?  i.e. coupon, check, 
correspondence? 
Answer  Coupons and checks should be imaged. 

Question 63.  Does the Town require a monthly CD ROM of images of Lockbox deposited items for 
research or is the online system of 6 months sufficient? 
Answer  Online images are sufficient, but the Town requests the images be available for one year. 

Question 64.  Does the Town utilize a Lockbox online system to view images of processed checks and 
coupons on a daily basis? 
Answer  Yes. 

Question 65.  Are there any documents that should be returned besides the unprocessables and 
correspondence? i.e. original coupons?  Even if images are available? 
Answer  No. 

Question 66.  How many unprocessables do you receive back per month?  What constitutes an 
unprocessable item that the Town wants back? 
Answer  The Town does not track the number of exceptions returned and the volume will vary depending 
on how many exceptions can be resolved online.  The most common returns are partial payments, checks 
with no coupon or an incorrect coupon, and invalid checks. 

Question 67.  Does the Town currently utilize an online system to decision unprocessable items?  Is online 
decisioning a requirement?  Or, can unprocessables be sent back to the Town for posting/deposit? 
Answer  Online decisioning is a requirement and the Town currently uses this service. 

Question 68.  How many correspondence items per box (letters, notes, etc.) do you anticipate per month? 
Answer  The Town does not track this data but estimates about 60 items per month during collection 
periods. 
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Question 69.  Does the Town need reassociation of work or stapling in return package? 
Answer  Since only exceptions will be returned, they should be reassembled. 

Question 70.  Return packages are routinely sent back overnight mail for tracking purposes.  Is this 
sufficient to the Town? 
Answer  Return packages are currently sent back by overnight mail, but the Town desires to make use of 
daily courier service during the lockbox periods to minimize delays in processing. 

Question 71.  Does the Town require the bank to sort payments into categories before processing?  How 
many categories and for what purpose? 
Answer  No. 

Question 72.  Lockbox, item 6—Lockbox Total Payments Processed – 410 items – The annual items 
processed volume is 15,253.  What do the 410 items represent? 
Answer  Wells Fargo defines “Lockbox Total Payments Processed” (410 items) as payments with OCR 
coupons and “Lockbox Standard Item Processing Non Scan” (15,253) as payments with no OCR coupon. 

Question 73.  Lockbox, item 9—Lockbox Excess Check Only Surcharge – 15,253 items – Is this a separate 
fee for processing checks? 
Answer  Lockbox Excess Check Only Surcharge – Per item charge when lockbox receives over 35% of 
work without an OCR scan line. 

Question 74.  Lockbox, item 13—Lockbox Rough Sorts <5 – 382 items – The 382 items match the Lockbox 
Checks category.  What do the 382 items represent? 
Answer  “Lockbox Checks” represent the number of checks deposited through the lockbox. 

Question 75.  Lockbox, item 17—Lockbox Document Scanned Non Scan – 31,276 items – What do the 
31,276 items represent? 
Answer  Item 16—“Lockbox Document Scanned” indicates documents with an OCR coupon. 

  Item 17—“Lockbox Document Scanned Non Scan” indicates documents with no OCR coupon. 
  Item 18—Lockbox B/W Image Archive is the total of items 16 and 17. 

Question 76.  What bank is currently used for Lockbox? 
Answer  The Town currently uses Wells Fargo for lockbox. 

Question 77.  What post office is currently used for tax remittances? 
Answer  Tax remittances are currently sent to a post office box in Stamford. 

Question 78.  Would you want the bank to provide images of envelopes for lockbox payments? 
Answer  No.  Envelopes should be returned for any items that cannot be processed at the lockbox. 

Question 79.  What percentage of your lockbox exceptions are “check only” (payments without a 
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coupon)? 
Answer  The Town does not track this data, but we estimate about 80% are check only. 

Question 80.  What percentage of your tax payments are made in person at the Town Hall?  Are you 
looking to send those payments to the Lockbox? 
Answer  The Town does not track this data.  Any tax payment received in person at the counter will be 
processed immediately on-site.  Payments received in the dropbox or mail will be opened and all payments 
with valid checks and matching coupons will be sent to the lockbox for processing.  Exceptions will 
remain at Town Hall.  Our goal is to automate the process as much as is reasonably possible. 

Fee Proposal 

Question 81A.  For General Account Services (Section A) and Depository Services (Section B), does 
“Desktop Deposit mean a deposit by the Town through a scanning machine? 
Answer  Yes. 

Question 81B.  For General ACH Services (Section E), what’s the difference between items 7 and 8 versus 
Items 18 and 19? 
Answer  Definitions are as follows: 
ACH One-Day Item – An ACH item sent with a settlement date one day after the ACH file is sent to the 
bank through direct origination. 
ACH Two-Day Item – An ACH item sent with a settlement date two or more days after the ACH file is 
sent to the bank through direct origination. 
ACH Payments One-Day Item – An ACH item sent with a settlement date one day after the ACH file is 
sent using ACH Payments through online banking. 
ACH Payments Two-Day Item – An ACH item sent with a settlement date two or more days after the ACH 
file is sent using ACH Payments through online banking. 

Question 81C.  For General ACH Services (Section E), please explain the meaning of “ACH Online 
Portal Subscription Account” (Item 1) and “ACH Online Portal Subscription Item” (Item 2)? 

Answer  Definitions are as follows: 
ACH Online Portal Subscription Account – ACH report monthly base. 
ACH Online Portal Subscription Item – Per item on the ACH report. 

Question 81D.  For Lockbox Services (Section H), please explain the difference between “Lockbox 
Standard Item Processing Non Scan” (Item 5) and “Lockbox Excess Check Only Surcharge” (Item 9)? 

Answer  Definitions are as follows: 
Lockbox Standard Item Processing Non Scan – Per item sent to the lockbox without an OCR scan line. 
Lockbox Excess Check Only Surcharge – Per item charge when lockbox receives over 35% of work 
without an OCR scan line. 
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Question 82.  Item 10—Cash Deposited in Branch/Store—please explain the annual volume of 1,420,159.  
Does that mean that an average of $118,346 is deposited each month or $5,635 is deposited each day? 
Answer  Volume ranges from $345,000 in July to $52,000 in May.  Deposits are made weekly (biweekly 
during collection periods). 

Question 83.  Item 11—Per Change Order Fee in Branch/Store—please tell us what the annual volume of 
13 represents. 
Answer  The Town cashed 13 petty cash checks at the bank from February 2016 through June 2016.  Prior 
to February, petty cash was obtained from internal collections.  External auditors commented that 
collections should be deposited intact, so the practice was discontinued. 

Question 84.  Item 12—Rolled Coin Ordered in Branch/Store—please tell us what the annual volume of 13 
represents. 
Answer  Same as 83 above.  The Town requested rolled coins for petty cash 13 times. 

Question 85.  Item 13—Cash ordered in Branch/Store—please tell us what the annual volume of 4,088 
represents.  Does it mean that you purchased roughly $340 in cash each month? 
Answer  Represents the dollar amount ordered for petty cash.  In fiscal year 2016, the Town cashed petty 
cash checks for five months for an average of $817 per month or roughly $200/week. 

Service Enhancements 

Question 86.  Are you interested in Advance Daily Credit via SMART Safe technology for deposits?  If yes, 
how many locations might require a SMART Safe? 
Answer  The Town will need more information about the technology, its advantages, and costs to 
determine interest. 

Question 87.  Keeping in line with your green initiative, would you like us to include ways to collect 
payments online that are being sent to the lockbox today? 
Answer  The Town welcomes all suggestions for improvement. 
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